
 

AGENDA  

MOLALLA CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

August 08, 2018 

7:00 PM 
Molalla Adult Center 

315 Kennel Ave., Molalla, OR 97038 
 
 

 
City Council Meeting Agenda 08/08/2018  Page 1 of 31 

 

Mayor Jimmy Thompson 
  
Council President Elizabeth Klein Councilor Glen Boreth 
Councilor Leota Childress Open Council Position 
Councilor DeLise Palumbo Councilor Keith Swigart 

 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
Convene Meeting and Roll Call 
Pledge of Allegiance 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT/COMMUNICATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS 

 
(Citizens are allowed up to 3 minutes to present information relevant to the City but not listed as an item on the agenda.  Prior to speaking, citizens shall 
complete a comment form and deliver it to the City Recorder. The City Council does not generically engage in dialog with those making comments but may 
refer the issue to the City Manager.  Complaints shall first be addressed at the department level prior to addressing the City Council.) 

 
ADOPTION OF AGENDA 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
1. City Council Minutes July 25, 2018 
2. Intergovernmental Agreement with Oregon Department of Transportation (ARTS) Program 
 
ORDINANCES, RESOLUTIONS, PROCLAMATIONS 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
3. Discussion of Future Topics 

 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
REPORTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
Held pursuant to Oregon Public Record Law, ORS 192.660(2): 
4. Discussion of Future Topics 

(h) To consult with counsel concerning the legal rights and duties of a public body with regard to current 
litigation or litigation likely to be filed. 

 
ADJOURN 

1



 

AGENDA  

MOLALLA CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

August 08, 2018 

7:00 PM 
Molalla Adult Center 

315 Kennel Ave., Molalla, OR 97038 
 
 

 
City Council Meeting Agenda 08/08/2018  Page 2 of 31 

 
 

Agenda posted at City Hall, Senior Center, Library and the City Website at http//www.cityofmolalla.com/meetings 
This meeting location is wheelchair accessible. Disabled individuals requiring other assistance must make their request known 48 hours preceding the 
meeting by contacting the City Recorder’s Office at 503-829-6855 

  

2



 
Minutes of the Molalla City Council Meeting 

Molalla Adult Center 
315 Kennel Ave., Molalla, OR 97038 

Wednesday, July 25, 2018 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Page 1 of 5 

 

 

 

CALL TO ORDER OF THE MOLALLA CITY COUNCIL MEETING; the regular meeting of July 25, 2018 was called to order by 

Mayor Jimmy Thompson at 7:01 P.M. 

 

 

COUNCIL ATTENDANCE:        STAFF IN ATTENDANCE   

Mayor Jimmy Thompson – Present    Dan Huff, City Manager – Present 

Councilor Elizabeth Klein – Present     Gerald Fisher, Public Works Director – Present 

Councilor Leota Childress – Present    Chaunee Seifried, Finance Director – Present 

Councilor DeLise Palumbo – Absent    Rod Lucich, Police Chief – Absent 

Councilor Glen Boreth – Present     Kelly Richardson, City Recorder – Present 

Councilor Open Position –      Diana Hadley, Library Director – Absent 

Councilor Keith Swigart – Present     Chad Jacobs, City Attorney – Absent 

 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT/COMMUNICATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS 
1. Tobacco Retail Licensing 

 Presentation, Clackamas County Board of Health. Dr. Sarah Present presented a power point presentation titled 
“Protecting Youth Through Tobacco Retail Licensing” The goal is to gain support of local Officials to work in conjunction 
with Clackamas County Board of Health to move this program along. Currently the tobacco retailers have no tracking 
method and really no consequences for selling to minors. Clackamas County hope is to model this program like the 
restaurant licensing process since it has been so successful. This type of licensing is becoming the norm. Clackamas 
County would implement and monitor the program. The County could administer the program without local support. 
However that is not our goal.  

 
 Through this process, we have found Molalla to have at least six tobacco retailers. If this program were to go through, 

they would be required to have a license. There would be at least two inspections a year and there would be penalties 
for those who don’t pass.  

 
 Councilors had various questions for Dr. Present;  

 Impact 

 How did you complete your research? Driving around. 

 How many inspectors? Two FTE and one as a new hire. 
 
Following the presentation and the brief discussion, Councilors asked the group to bring back some type of 
proposal and they can certainly look at it then.  
 

3



 
Minutes of the Molalla City Council Meeting 

Molalla Adult Center 
315 Kennel Ave., Molalla, OR 97038 

Wednesday, July 25, 2018 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Page 2 of 5 

 

 (Citizens are allowed up to 3 minutes to present information relevant to the City but not listed as an item on the agenda.  Prior to speaking, citizens shall 
complete a comment form and deliver it to the City Recorder. The City Council does not generically engage in dialog with those making comments but may 
refer the issue to the City Manager.  Complaints shall first be addressed at the department level prior to addressing the City Council.) 

 
ADOPTION OF AGENDA 
Motion made by Councilor Boreth to adopt agenda as presented, Seconded by Councilor Swigart. 
Voting Yea: Mayor Thompson, Councilor Klein, Councilor Boreth, Councilor Childress, Councilor Swigart 
 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
2. City Council Minutes July 11, 2018 
3. Resolution 2018-13, Resolution 2018-14 & Resolution 2018-15 
Motion made by Councilor Swigart to adopt the consent agenda as presented, Seconded by Councilor Boreth. 
Voting Yea: Mayor Thompson, Councilor Klein, Councilor Boreth, Councilor Childress, Councilor Swigart 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
Opened at 7:31 pm by Mayor Thompson.  
CM Huff presented the staff report for the Comp Plan and Zone Map Amendment for P28-2018 rezoning 
application from Hix Snedeker Development, LLC.  Huff explained the application briefly; the property is located 
at/or near the intersection of Highway 213 and Toliver Road. The applicant has requested a Comp Plan and zone 
change to rezone the property from M-1 (light industrial) to C-2 (General Commercial). Huff explained the 
conditions and recommendation from the Molalla Planning Commission. Conditions of approval; 

 Approve planning permit P29-2018 to amend the comprehensive plan map and re-zone the proposed 
parcel 1 from M-1 Light Industrial to C-2 Commercial. 

 The applicant shall abide by the Oregon Department of Transportation’s recommendations/standards. 

 The applicant shall abide by the conditions prescribed by the Public Works Department (Exhibit B). 

 The applicant shall be required to acquire any State or Federal permits applicable to this development.  
Huff explained that ODOT provided more detailed conditions however staff believed they were consistent with the 
conditions in the staff report.  
Mayor Thompson read process of hearing. Thompson asked councilors if there are any conflict of interest to 
declare hearing none Thompson called for any questions of Council.  
  
Councilor Swigart asked if there is going to be a speed change suggested. PWD Fisher stated a speed change is not 
part of this project. Fisher explained we will be applying for a speed limit change from north city limits to south city 
limits in a separate request. PWD Fisher stated he was not requesting the speed change because of this 
application, it’s necessary for our UGB area and the high crash rate at Hwy 213 and Toliver Road. A few of the 
possible solutions discussed for the intersection was a roundabout or a traffic signal study.   
Ultimately ODOT is in control of Hwy 213. However, to keep the project moving forward there may be a need for a 
non-remonstrance agreement with the applicant. Councilor Boreth pointed out that the original paperwork from 
ODOT didn’t include a roundabout. What happens in the interim? PWD Fisher explained while ODOT is doing their 
study. If ODOT were to allow the applicant to wait on the improvements the City has the other safety 
improvement projects, to aide in the safety concerns.  Councilor Boreth asked Fisher about the turn lanes and 

4



 
Minutes of the Molalla City Council Meeting 

Molalla Adult Center 
315 Kennel Ave., Molalla, OR 97038 

Wednesday, July 25, 2018 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Page 3 of 5 

 

what that would consist of. Councilor Boreth asked about sidewalks. He stated that he didn’t see any. Both Huff 
and Fisher pointed out the sidewalks to Boreth.  
4. Hearing Regarding Application P-29-2018 Regarding a Zone Change Ordinance 2018-11 
 The applicant briefly explained the project and what they were requesting. No one else spoke in favor of the project. 

Mayor Thompson called for any opposition hearing none closed the public hearing 7:55 pm and moved on to Council 
discussion.  

 
 Mayor Thompson stated he spoke to ODOT about next steps ODOT is currently working on a safety assessment which 

will determine whether they will require a roundabout or signal at Hwy 213 and Toliver and they won’t know until 
September.   
Council briefly discuss the access hearing no other discussion they move into the approval process.   

 
ORDINANCES, RESOLUTIONS, PROCLAMATIONS 
5. Ordinance 2018-11 Zone Change. 

Motion made by Councilor Boreth to read by title only the first reading of Ordinance 2018-11, Seconded by Councilor 
Swigart. Voting Yea: Mayor Thompson, Councilor Klein, Councilor Boreth, Councilor Childress, Councilor Swigart 
 
Motion made by Councilor Klein to read by title only the second reading of Ordinance 2018-11, Seconded by Councilor 
Swigart. Voting Yea: Mayor Thompson, Councilor Klein, Councilor Boreth, Councilor Childress, Councilor Swigart 
  
Motion made by Councilor Swigart to adopt Ordinance 2018-11, Seconded by Councilor Childress. 
Voting Yea: Mayor Thompson, Councilor Klein, Councilor Boreth, Councilor Childress, Councilor Swigart 
 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
6. League of Oregon Cities Legislative Priorities  

CM Huff presented the list of LOC Legislative interests upon a lengthy discussion and voting process. Council chose their top 
four legislative items as: 

1. Infrastructure Financing and Resilience 
2. Mental Health Investment 
3. PERS Reform 
4. Safe Routes to Schools 

The least favored four items that Council felt would impact Molalla were: 

1. Auto Theft 
2. Lodging Tax Definition Broadening 
3. Speed Cameras 
4. Wood Smoke Reduction Program Support 

  
7. Discussion of future topics.  

5



 
Minutes of the Molalla City Council Meeting 

Molalla Adult Center 
315 Kennel Ave., Molalla, OR 97038 

Wednesday, July 25, 2018 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Page 4 of 5 

 

 Councilor Swigart would like to see Odd Fellows Park on the agenda for discussion to place a Veterans Memorial plaque 
or bench. Following a brief discussion, Councilor Swigart was asked to work with CM Huff on a proposal to bring back to 
Council.  

  
 

OLD BUSINESS 
8. Ordinance 2018-07 Utility Billing Payments Section 

Motion made by Councilor Swigart to approve the first reading of Ordinance 2018-07, Seconded by Councilor Childress. 
Voting Yea: Mayor Thompson, Councilor Klein, Councilor Boreth, Councilor Childress, Councilor Swigart. 
  
Motion made by Councilor Childress to approve by title only the seconding reading of Ordinance 2018-07, Seconded by 
Councilor Swigart. 
Voting Yea: Mayor Thompson, Councilor Klein, Councilor Boreth, Councilor Childress, Councilor Swigart 
  
Motion made by Councilor Swigart to adopt Ordinance 2018-07 as presented, Seconded by Councilor Childress. 
Voting Yea: Mayor Thompson, Councilor Klein, Councilor Boreth, Councilor Childress, Councilor Swigart 
 
 

Motion made by Councilor Childress to un-table Molalla Forest Road discussion, Seconded by Councilor Swigart. 
Voting Yea: Mayor Thompson, Councilor Klein, Councilor Boreth, Councilor Childress, Councilor Swigart. 
  
 
REPORTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 
Finance Director, Chaunee Seifried had nothing more.  
City Recorder, Kelly Richardson had nothing.  
Public Works Director, Gerald Fisher had the following updates for Council; 

 IGA with ODOT for the Hwy 213 and Toliver Road and Ona Way is underway. 

 Work crews have been working hard taking inventory and cleaning at the treatment plant.  

 Biosolids removal is going well.  

 For fun, PWD Fisher presented a pick the cleanest looking water game which showed Molalla River water 
and treated effluent. The point of the game was to show that treated effluent was cleaner and clearer 
than the river water.  

 CM Huff was going to bring up Molalla Forest Road for discussion however Councilor Childress beat him to it.  
Councilor Swigart had nothing. 
Councilor Boreth had nothing.  
Councilor Childress updated Council on the upcoming Community Celebration.  
Councilor Klein updated Council regarding the Art Walk and that the meeting with Grande Ronde Tribal Council 
went well.  
  
 
 
 
 

6



 
Minutes of the Molalla City Council Meeting 

Molalla Adult Center 
315 Kennel Ave., Molalla, OR 97038 

Wednesday, July 25, 2018 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Page 5 of 5 

 

ADJOURN 
 

Councilor Swigart thanked all the citizens of Molalla for their water conservation efforts.  
Motion made by Councilor Klein to adjourn the meeting at 9:05pm, Seconded by Councilor Childress. 
Voting Yea: Mayor Thompson, Councilor Klein, Councilor Boreth, Councilor Childress, Councilor Swigart 
 

 

 

 

 

_____________________________   _____________________________ 

Mayor, Jimmy Thompson     Date 

 

 

 

 

 ATTEST: ________________________________  

  Kelly Richardson, CMC 

  City Recorder 

7



 

 

City Of Molalla 
City Council Meeting 

 
 Agenda Category: Consent Agenda  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Gerald Fisher, Public Works Director   
APPROVED BY:  Dan Huff, City Manager                                             

Subject:  Intergovernmental Agreement with Oregon Department of Transportation for the 

All Roads Transportation Safety (ARTS) Program Project 

 

 

Recommendation:   Council Approval 

 
Date of Meeting to be Presented:   August 8, 2018 

Fiscal Impact:  Street SDC Fund, Capital Projects Fund $11,000 

Background:   

On May 30, 2018, the City received notification from the Oregon Department of 

Transportation (ODOT) that it had been awarded and All Roads Transportation Safety (ARTS) 

Program grant award. In order to begin the project the City must enter into an 

intergovernmental agreement (IGA) with ODOT. Attached is a final draft of the IGA. Staff 

recommends the City Council authorize the City Manager to negotiate and execute and 

intergovernmental agreement and any change orders within the approved budget with the 

Oregon Department of Transportation for the ARTS project. 

 
 

8



Misc. Contracts and Agreements 
No. 32933 

Key No. 20337 

LOCAL AGENCY AGREEMENT 
All Roads Transportation Safety 
State Delivered Federal Project  

EAST SYSTEMIC SIGNALS AND ILLUMINATION (Molalla) 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into by and between the STATE OF OREGON, acting 
by and through its Department of Transportation, hereinafter referred to as “State” or “ODOT,” 
and the CITY OF MOLALLA acting by and through its elected officials, hereinafter referred to as 
“Agency,” each herein referred to individually as a “Party” and collectively as the “Parties.” 

RECITALS  

1. By the authority granted in Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) 190.110, 366.572 and 366.576, 
State may enter into cooperative agreements with counties, cities and units of local 
governments for the performance of work on certain types of improvement projects with the 
allocation of costs on terms and conditions mutually agreeable to the contracting parties. 

2. OR 213 and OR 211 are parts of the state highways system under the jurisdiction and 
control of the Oregon Transportation Commission (OTC). Toliver Road and Ona Way are 
parts of the city road system under the jurisdiction and control of Agency. 

3. Agency has agreed that State will deliver this project on behalf of the Agency.  

4. The Stewardship and Oversight Agreement On Project Assumption and Program Oversight 
By and Between Federal Highway Administration, Oregon Division and the State of Oregon 
Department of Transportation (“Stewardship Agreement”) documents the roles and 
responsibilities of the State with respect to project approvals and responsibilities regarding 
delivery of the Federal Aid Highway Program.  This includes the State’s oversight and 
reporting requirements related to locally administered projects.  The provisions of that 
agreement are hereby incorporated and included by reference. 

5. State has agreed to deliver the “East Systemic Signal and Bike/Ped Illumination Project” 
(the “Principal”). The Principal project is a project that crosses multiple jurisdictions.  

6. The project set forth in this Agreement constitutes that part of the Principal project that is 
located in Agency’s jurisdiction.  

7. The project set forth in this Agreement was selected as part of the All Roads Transportation 
Safety Program and may be funded with a combination of eligible federal and state funds. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the premises being in general as stated in the foregoing Recitals, it is 
agreed by and between the Parties hereto as follows:  

TERMS OF AGREEMENT 

1. Under such authority, Agency and State agree to State delivering on behalf of Agency the 
portion of the Principal project located in Agency’s jurisdiction, such portion hereinafter 
referred to as the “Project.” The Project’s scope and location are further set forth in Exhibit A, 
attached hereto and by this reference made a part hereof.  

9



State/Agency 
Agreement No. 32933 
 

2 
 

2. State and Agency agree that State will serve as the lead contracting agency and contract 
administrator for the consultant contract related to the work under this Agreement. 

3. The total cost of the Project set forth in this Agreement is estimated at $128,700, which is 
subject to change. Federal funds for the Project are limited to $118,687. Agency shall be 
responsible for the 7.78 percent match for all eligible costs and any non-participating costs. 
Any unused federal or state funds will be retained by State and will not be available for use 
by Agency for this Agreement or any other projects.   

4. If the total cost of the Project exceeds $128,700, the Parties shall be responsible for such 
excess costs as provided in Special Provisions Paragraph 4.    

5. Federal funds under this Agreement are provided under Title 23, United States Code. 

6. With the exception of Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA) related design 
standards and exceptions, State shall consult with Agency on Project decisions that impact 
Total Project Cost involving the application of design standards, design exceptions, risks, 
schedule, and preliminary engineering charges, for work performed on roadways under 
local jurisdiction. State will allow Agency to participate in regular meetings and will use all 
reasonable efforts to obtain Agency’s concurrence on plans. State shall consult with Agency 
prior to making changes to Project scope, schedule, or budget. However, State may award 
a construction contract at ten (10) percent (%) over engineer’s estimate without prior 
approval of Agency.   

7. State will submit the requests for federal funding to Federal Highway Administration 
(FHWA). The federal funding for this Project is contingent upon approval of each funding 
request by FHWA. Any work performed outside the period of performance or scope of work 
approved by FHWA will be considered nonparticipating and paid for at Agency expense. 

8. Agency guarantees the availability of Agency funding in an amount required to fully fund 
Agency’s share of the Project.  

9. State considers Agency a subrecipient of the federal funds it receives as reimbursement 
under this Agreement.   

10. The Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) number and title for this Project is 
20.205, Highway Planning and Construction. 

11. The term of this Agreement shall begin on the date all required signatures are obtained and 
shall terminate upon completion of the Project and final payment or ten (10) calendar years 
following the date all required signatures are obtained, whichever is sooner.  

12. This Agreement may be terminated by mutual written consent of both Parties. 

13. State may terminate this Agreement effective upon delivery of written notice to Agency, or at 
such later date as may be established by State, under any of the following conditions: 

a. If Agency fails to provide services called for by this Agreement within the time 
specified herein or any extension thereof. 

10



State/Agency 
Agreement No. 32933 
 

3 
 

b. If Agency fails to perform any of the other provisions of this Agreement, or so 
fails to pursue the work as to endanger performance of this Agreement in 
accordance with its terms, and after receipt of written notice from State fails to 
correct such failures within ten (10) days or such longer period as State may 
authorize. 

c. If Agency fails to provide payment of its share of the cost of the Project. 

d. If State fails to receive funding, appropriations, limitations or other expenditure 
authority sufficient to allow State, in the exercise of its reasonable 
administrative discretion, to continue to make payments for performance of this 
Agreement. 

e. If federal or state laws, regulations or guidelines are modified or interpreted in 
such a way that either the work under this Agreement is prohibited or if State 
is prohibited from paying for such work from the planned funding source. 

14. Any termination of this Agreement shall not prejudice any rights or obligations accrued to the 
Parties prior to termination. 

15. Information required by 2 Code of Federal Regulation (CFR) 200.331(a)(1) shall be contained 
in the USDOT FHWA Federal Aid Project Agreement for this Project, a copy of which shall 
be provided by ODOT to  Agency with the Notice to Proceed.  

16. Indirect Cost Rate.   

a. As required by 2 CFR 200.331(a)(4), the indirect cost rate for this project at the time the 
agreement is written is zero percent (0%). This rate may change during the term of this 
Agreement upon notice to ODOT and ODOT’s subsequent written approval. 
 

b. If the approved rate changes during the term of this Agreement, Agency shall invoice 
ODOT using the current indirect cost rates for the project on file with ODOT at the time 
the work is performed. If Agency does not have approved indirect cost rates on file with 
ODOT at the time the work is performed, Agency shall invoice ODOT using a zero percent 
(0%) rate.     

17. By signing this Federal-Aid Agreement Agency agrees to comply with the provisions of the 
Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) and is subject to the 
following award terms: http://edocket.access.gpo.gov/2010/pdf/2010-22705.pdf and 
http://edocket.access.gpo.gov/2010/pdf/2010-22706.pdf.  If, in the preceding fiscal year, 
Agency received more than eighty percent (80%) of its gross revenues from the federal 
government, those federal funds exceed $25,000,000 annually, and the public does not 
have access to information about the compensation of executives through reports filed 
under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 or section 6104 of the 
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, Agency shall report the total compensation and names of 
its top five executives to State. Agency shall report said information to State within 14 
calendar days of execution of this Agreement and annually thereafter, utilizing the FFATA 
form attached hereto as Exhibit ”B”. 

 
11



State/Agency 
Agreement No. 32933 
 

4 
 

18. Americans with Disabilities Act Compliance: 
 

a. When the Project scope includes work on sidewalks, curb ramps, or pedestrian-
activated signals or triggers an obligation to address curb ramps or pedestrian signals, 
the Parties shall: 

i. Utilize ODOT standards to assess and ensure Project compliance with Section 504 
of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 as 
amended (together, “ADA”), including ensuring that all sidewalks, curb ramps, and 
pedestrian-activated signals  meet current ODOT Highway Design Manual 
standards; 

ii. Follow ODOT’s processes for design, modification, upgrade, or construction of 
sidewalks, curb ramps, and pedestrian-activated signals, including using the ODOT 
Highway Design Manual, ODOT Design Exception process, ODOT Standard 
Drawings, ODOT Construction Specifications, providing a temporary pedestrian 
accessible route plan and current ODOT Curb Ramp Inspection form; 

iii. At Project completion, send a completed ODOT Curb Ramp Inspection Form 734-
5020 to the address on the form as well as to State’s Project Manager for each curb 
ramp constructed, modified, upgraded, or improved as part of the Project. The 
completed form is the documentation required to show that each curb ramp meets 
ODOT standards and is ADA compliant. ODOT’s fillable Curb Ramp Inspection Form 
and instructions are available at the following address: 

http://www.oregon.gov/ODOT/HWY/CONSTRUCTION/Pages/HwyConstForms1.as
px 

b. State shall ensure that temporary pedestrian routes are provided through or around any 
Project work zone.  Any such temporary pedestrian route shall include directional and 
informational signs, comply with ODOT standards, and include accessibility features 
equal to or better than the features present in the existing pedestrian facility. State shall 
also ensure that advance notice of any temporary pedestrian route is provided in 
acessible format to the public, people with disabilities, and disability organizations at 
least 10 days prior to the start of construction.   

c. Agency shall ensure that any portions of the Project under Agency’s maintenance 
jurisdiction are maintained in compliance with the ADA throughout the useful life of the 
Project. This includes, but is not limited to, Agency ensuring that:  

i. Pedestrian access is maintained as required by the ADA, 

ii. Any complaints received by Agency identifying sidewalk, curb ramp, or pedestrian-
activated signal safety or access issues are promptly evaluated and addressed,  

iii. Any repairs or removal of obstructions needed to maintain Project features in 
compliance with the ADA requirements that were in effect at the time of Project 
construction are completed by Agency or abutting property owner pursuant to 
applicable local code provisions,  

12



State/Agency 
Agreement No. 32933 
 

5 
 

iv. Any future alteration work on Project or Project features during the useful life of the 
Project complies with the ADA requirements in effect at the time the future alteration 
work is performed, and 

v. Applicable permitting and regulatory actions are consistent with ADA requirements.  

d. Maintenance obligations in this section shall survive termination of this Agreement. 

19. State shall ensure compliance with the Cargo Preference Act and implementing regulations 
(46 CFR Part 381) for use of United States-flag ocean vessels transporting materials or 
equipment acquired specifically for the Project.  Strict compliance is required, including but 
not limited to the clauses in 46 CFR 381.7(a) and (b) which are incorporated by 
reference.  State shall also include this requirement in all contracts and ensure that 
contractors include the requirement in their subcontracts. 

20. Agency grants State the right to enter onto Agency right of way for the performance of duties 
as set forth in this Agreement. 

21. The Special and Standard Provisions attached hereto, marked Attachments 1 and 2, 
respectively, are by this reference made a part hereof. The Standard Provisions apply to all 
federal-aid projects and may be modified only by the Special Provisions. The Parties hereto 
mutually agree to the terms and conditions set forth in Attachments 1 and 2. In the event of 
a conflict, this Agreement shall control over the attachments, and Attachment 1 shall control 
over Attachment 2.  

22. State and Agency agree that if any term or provision of this Agreement is declared by a 
court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, unenforceable, illegal or in conflict with any law, 
the validity of the remaining terms and provisions shall not be affected, and the rights and 
obligations of the Parties shall be construed and enforced as if the Agreement did not 
contain the particular term or provision held to be invalid. 

23. Agency certifies and represents that the individual(s) signing this Agreement has been 
authorized to enter into and execute this Agreement on behalf of Agency, under the 
direction or approval of its governing body, commission, board, officers, members or 
representatives, and to legally bind Agency. 

24. This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts (facsimile or otherwise) all of 
which when taken together shall constitute one agreement binding on all Parties, 
notwithstanding that all Parties are not signatories to the same counterpart. Each copy of 
this Agreement so executed shall constitute an original. 

25. This Agreement and attached exhibits constitute the entire agreement between the Parties 
on the subject matter hereof. In the event of conflict, the body of this Agreement and the 
attached exhibits will control over Project application and documents provided by Agency 
to State. There are no understandings, agreements, or representations, oral or written, not 
specified herein regarding this Agreement.  No waiver, consent, modification or change of 
terms of this Agreement shall bind either party unless in writing and signed by both Parties 
and all necessary approvals have been obtained. Such waiver, consent, modification or 
change, if made, shall be effective only in the specific instance and for the specific purpose 

13



State/Agency 
Agreement No. 32933 
 

6 
 

given. The failure of State to enforce any provision of this Agreement shall not constitute a 
waiver by State of that or any other provision. Notwithstanding this provision, the Parties 
may enter into a Right Of Way Services Agreement in furtherance of the Project. 

26. State Contact for this Agreement is Elizabeth Wakefield, Senior Project Leader, 123 NW 
Flanders Street, Portland, OR 97209, 503-731-3439, Elizabeth.wakefield@odot.state.or.us, 
or assigned designee upon individual’s absence. State shall notify the other Party in writing 
of any contact information changes during the term of this Agreement.  

27. Agency’s Contact for this Project is Gerald Fisher, Public Works Director, PO Box 248, 
Molalla, OR 97038, 503-829-6855, or assigned designee upon individual’s absence. 
Agency shall notify the other Party in writing of any contact information changes during the 
term of this Agreement. 

Signature Page to Follow 

  

14



State/Agency 
Agreement No. 32933 
 

7 
 

THE PARTIES, by execution of this Agreement, hereby acknowledge that their signing 
representatives have read this Agreement, understand it, and agree to be bound by its terms 
and conditions. 

This Project is in the 2018-2021 Statewide Transportation Improvement Program (STIP), (Key 
#20337) that was adopted by the Oregon Transportation Commission on July 20, 2017 (or 
subsequently by amendment to the STIP).   

 

CITY OF MOLALLA, by and through its 
elected officials 

By _______________________________ 
 
Title ______________________________ 
 
Date _____________________________ 
 
By _______________________________ 
 
Title ______________________________ 
 
Date _____________________________ 
 
LEGAL REVIEW APPROVAL  
 
By _______________________________ 
Agency Counsel 

Date _____________________________ 

Agency Contact: 
Gerald Fisher, PW Director 
PO Box 248 
Molalla, OR 97038 
503-829-6855 
gfisher@cityofmolalla.com 
 

STATE OF OREGON, by and through 
its Department of Transportation 

By _______________________________ 
Highway Division Administrator 

Date _____________________________ 

APPROVAL RECOMMENDED 

By _______________________________ 
Region 1 Manager 
 
Date ____________________________ 

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL 
SUFFICIENCY 

By Rachel Bertoni via email dated 7/25/2018 
 
 
State Contact:  
Elizabeth Wakefield, Senior Project Leader 
123 NW Flanders Street 
Portland, OR 97209 
(503) 731-3439 
elizabeth.wakefield@odot.state.or.us 
 
 
 

 
 
  

15



State/Agency 
Agreement No. 32933 
 

8 
 

Exhibit A – Project Location and Scope of Work 
 

As part of the Project set forth in this Agreement, State will construct the following 
improvements at the following locations: 
 

ARTS ID # Location Improvements 
 

8 
 
Intersections of OR 213 at 
Toliver Road and OR 211 at 
Ona Way 
 

 
Install illumination, advance intersection warning signs with 
street names, and transverse rumble strips on approaches, 
and increase triangle sight distances. 
 

16



State/Agency 
Agreement No. 32933  

734-5075 (10-28-2016)                                                                          9 
 

EXHIBIT B 
Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) 

Subaward Reporting 
(For purposes of this Exhibit, references to “your organization” shall mean “Agency” and references to “ODOT” shall mean “State.”)  
The Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT) is required to fulfill a federal requirement for contracting under the 
Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) Subaward Reporting System (FSRS). FFATA reporting is 
a requirement for subawards (also known as subrecipients) of federal awards in excess of $25,000,000. Your organization 
will enter into an agreement with ODOT where the funding source is a federal grant with a subrecipient relationship. Your 
organization is required to submit the information below to the Oregon Department of Transportation within fourteen 
calendar days of execution of the Agreement and annually thereafter, if applicable.  (See the following page for further 
details.) 
 
Legal entity name:       
 
Data Universal Number System (DUNS) number:       
Executive compensation 
Executive compensation information is also required to determine whether or not the following information must be 
reported in FSRS: 
 

a. In your organization’s previous fiscal year, did your organization receive 80% or more of its annual gross revenue 
and $25,000,000 or more in federal procurement contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, cooperative 
agreements and federal financial assistance awards subject to the Transparency Act? (Include parent 
organization, all branches, and all affiliates worldwide.) 

 Yes    No If “yes,” proceed to b. If “no,” no further action is required and submittal of this form is not 
required. 

b. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the senior executives in your organization 
(including parent organization, all branches, and all affiliates worldwide) through periodic reports filed under section 
13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal 
Revenue Code of 1986? 

 Yes    No If “yes,” provide a link to the SEC: http://www.sec.gov where this information is located and return 
form to the ODOT contact shown at the bottom of this form. 

 Provide link here:       
 If “no,” provide compensation information below.  

Names and annual compensation amounts of the five most highly compensated executives: 
 
1.        $       
 
2.        $       
 
3.        $       
 
4.        $       
 
5.        $       
Business entity contact information (person completing form): 
 
                    
Type name Title Date 
 
Return completed form to:  Jeff Flowers, Program and Funding Services Manager; Oregon Department of Transportation; 555 
13th Street NE; Salem, OR 97301; Jeffrey.A.FLOWERS@odot.state.or.us 

17



State/Agency 
Agreement No. 32933 

 34-5075 (10-28-2016)                                                       10 
 

 

Background on FFATA requirements 
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) was signed on  September 26, 2006. The intent 
is of the Act is to empower every American with the ability to hold the government accountable for each spending 
decision. The end result is to reduce wasteful spending in the government. The FFATA legislation requires 
information on federal awards (federal financial assistance and expenditures) be made available to the public via a 
single, searchable website, which is www.USASpending.gov. 
 
Definition of compensation 
Your organization is considered a subrecipient of federal funds.  Unless your organization is exempt, FFATA 
requires you to report total compensation for each of your five most highly compensated executives for the 
preceding completed year. Total compensation means the cash and non-cash dollar value earned by the executive 
during the subrecipient's preceding fiscal year and includes the following: salary and bonus; awards of stock, stock 
options, and stock appropriation rights; earnings for services under non-equity incentive plans; change in pension 
value; above-market earnings on deferred compensation which is not tax-qualified; and other compensation as 
defined in 2 CFR Part 170, Section 170.330(b)(5)(vi).   

 
More detailed information about the FFATA can be found at: http://edocket.access.gpo.gov/2010/pdf/2010-
22705.pdf 

  
 

 
If you have any questions, contact: 
Jeff Flowers 
Program and Funding Services Manager 
Oregon Department of Transportation 
555 13th Street NE 
Salem, OR 97301 
Jeffrey.A.FLOWERS@odot.state.or.us 
Telephone: 503-986-4453 

 
 

18



Agency/State 
Agreement No. 32933 

 11 

ATTACHMENT NO. 1 to AGREEMENT NO. 32933 
SPECIAL PROVISIONS 

 
1. State or its consultant shall conduct all work components necessary to complete the 

Project, except for those responsibilities specifically assigned to Agency in this 
Agreement. 
 
a. State or its consultant shall conduct preliminary engineering and design work 

required to produce final plans, specifications, and cost estimates in accordance 
with current state and federal laws and regulations; obtain all required permits; 
acquire necessary right of way and easements; and arrange for all utility relocations 
and adjustments. 

 
b. State will advertise, bid, and award the construction contract. Upon State’s award 

of the construction contract, a consultant hired and overseen by the State shall be 
responsible for contract administration and construction engineering & inspection, 
including all required materials testing and quality documentation.  State shall make 
all contractor payments.   

 
c. State will perform project management and oversight activities throughout the 

duration of the Project.  The cost of such activities will be billed to the Project.    
 

2. State and Agency agree that the useful life of this Project is defined as twenty (20) 
years. 
 

3. If Agency fails to meet the requirements of this Agreement or the underlying federal 
regulations, State may withhold the Agency's proportional share of Highway Fund 
distribution necessary to reimburse State for costs incurred by such Agency breach.  
Agency will be ineligible to receive or apply for any Title 23, United States Code funds 
until State receives full reimbursement of the costs incurred. 

 
4. If the total cost of the Project exceeds the total Project cost set forth in Terms of 

Agreement paragraph 3, Agency and State may amend this Agreement to either (a) 
reduce the scope of the Project such that the available State, federal, and Agency funds 
are sufficient to complete the Project, or (b) apportion the excess costs between Agency 
and State in a manner agreeable to both Parties. If the Parties do not amend this 
Agreement, State may, in its sole discretion, reduce the scope of the Project such that 
State can complete the Project with the available State, federal, and Agency funds. 

19



 

12 
STDPRO-2017 
Rev. 01-20-2017 

ATTACHMENT NO. 2 
FEDERAL STANDARD PROVISIONS 

 
PROJECT ADMINISTRATION 

1. State (ODOT) is acting to fulfill its responsibility to the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) by 
the administration of this Project, and Agency (i.e. county, city, unit of local government, or other 
state agency) hereby agrees that State shall have full authority to carry out this administration. If 
requested by Agency or if deemed necessary by State in order to meet its obligations to FHWA, 
State will act for Agency in other matters pertaining to the Project. Prior to taking such action, State 
will confer with Agency concerning actions necessary to meet federal obligations. State and Agency 
shall each assign a person in responsible charge “liaison” to coordinate activities and assure that 
the interests of both Parties are considered during all phases of the Project. 

2. Any project that uses federal funds in project development is subject to plans, specifications and 
estimates (PS&E) review and approval by FHWA or State acting on behalf of FHWA prior to 
advertisement for bid proposals, regardless of the source of funding for construction. 

3. State will provide or secure services to perform plans, specifications and estimates (PS&E), 
construction contract advertisement, bid, award, contractor payments and contract administration. 
A State-approved consultant may be used to perform preliminary engineering, right of way and 
construction engineering services.  

4. Agency may perform only those elements of the Project identified in the special provisions. 

PROJECT FUNDING REQUEST 

5. State shall submit a separate written Project funding request to FHWA requesting approval of 
federal-aid participation for each project phase including a) Program Development (Planning), b) 
Preliminary Engineering (National Environmental Policy Act - NEPA, Permitting and Project Design), 
c) Right of Way Acquisition, d) Utilities, and e) Construction (Construction Advertising, Bid and 
Award).  Any work performed prior to FHWA’s approval of each funding request will be considered 
nonparticipating and paid for at Agency expense. State, its consultant or Agency shall not proceed 
on any activity in which federal-aid participation is desired until such written approval for each 
corresponding phase is obtained by State.  State shall notify Agency in writing when authorization 
to proceed has been received from FHWA. All work and records of such work shall be in 
conformance with FHWA rules and regulations.  

FINANCE 

6. Federal funds shall be applied toward Project costs at the current federal-aid matching ratio, unless 
otherwise agreed and allowable by law. Agency shall be responsible for the entire match amount 
for the federal funds and any portion of the Project, which is not covered by federal funding, unless 
otherwise agreed to and specified in the intergovernmental Agreement (Project Agreement). Agency 
must obtain written approval from State to use in-kind contributions rather than cash to satisfy all or 
part of the matching funds requirement. If federal funds are used, State will specify the Catalog of 
Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) number in the Project Agreement. State will also determine 
and clearly state in the Project Agreement if recipient is a subrecipient or vendor, using the criteria 
in 2 CFR 200.330. 

20



Agency/State 
Agreement No. 32933 
 

13 
STDPRO-2017 
Rev. 01-20-2017 

7. If the estimated cost exceeds the total matched federal funds available, Agency shall deposit its 
share of the required matching funds, plus 100 percent of all costs in excess of the total matched 
federal funds. Agency shall pay one hundred (100) percent of the cost of any item in which FHWA 
will not participate. If Agency has not repaid any non-participating cost, future allocations of federal 
funds or allocations of State Highway Trust Funds to Agency may be withheld to pay the 
non-participating costs. If State approves processes, procedures, or contract administration outside 
the Local Agency Guidelines Manual that result in items being declared non-participating by FHWA, 
such items deemed non-participating will be negotiated between Agency and State.  Agency agrees 
that costs incurred by State and Agency for services performed in connection with any phase of the 
Project shall be charged to the Project, unless otherwise mutually agreed upon by the Parties.  

8. Agency’s estimated share and advance deposit. 

a) Agency shall, prior to commencement of the preliminary engineering and/or right of 
way acquisition phases, deposit with State its estimated share of each phase. 
Exception may be made in the case of projects where Agency has written approval 
from State to use in-kind contributions rather than cash to satisfy all or part of the 
matching funds requirement. 

b) Agency’s construction phase deposit shall be one hundred ten (110) percent of 
Agency's share of the engineer’s estimate and shall be received prior to award of the 
construction contract. Any additional balance of the deposit, based on the actual bid, 
must be received within forty-five (45) days of receipt of written notification by State 
of the final amount due, unless the contract is cancelled. Any balance of a cash 
deposit in excess of amount needed, based on the actual bid, will be refunded within 
forty-five (45) days of receipt by State of the Project sponsor’s written request. 

c) Pursuant to Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) 366.425, the advance deposit may be 
in the form of 1) money deposited in the State Treasury (an option where a deposit 
is made in the Local Government Investment Pool), and an Irrevocable Limited 
Power of Attorney is sent to State’s Active Transportation Section, Funding and 
Program Services Unit, or 2) an Irrevocable Letter of Credit issued by a local bank in 
the name of State, or 3) cash. 

9. If Agency makes a written request for the cancellation of a federal-aid project; Agency shall bear 
one hundred (100) percent of all costs incurred as of the date of cancellation. If State was the sole 
cause of the cancellation, State shall bear one hundred (100) percent of all costs incurred. If it is 
determined that the cancellation was caused by third parties or circumstances beyond the control 
of State or Agency, Agency shall bear all costs, whether incurred by State or Agency, either directly 
or through contract services, and State shall bear any State administrative costs incurred. After 
settlement of payments, State shall deliver surveys, maps, field notes, and all other data to Agency. 

10. Agency shall follow the requirements stated in the Single Audit Act.  Agencies expending   $500,000 
or more in Federal funds (from all sources) in its fiscal year beginning prior to December 26, 2014, 
shall have a single organization-wide audit conducted in accordance with the Single Audit Act of 
1984, PL 98-502 as amended by PL 104-156 and subject to the requirements of 49 CFR Parts 18 
and 19.  Agencies expending $750,000 or more in federal funds (from all sources) in a fiscal year 
beginning on or after December 26, 2014 shall have a single organization-wide audit conducted in 
accordance with the provisions of 2 CFR part 200, subpart F. Agencies expending less than 
$500,000 in Federal funds in a fiscal year beginning prior to December 26, 2014, or less than 
$750,000 in a fiscal year beginning on or after that date, are exempt from Federal audit requirements 

21



Agency/State 
Agreement No. 32933 
 

14 
STDPRO-2017 
Rev. 01-20-2017 

for that year.  Records must be available for review or audit by appropriate officials based on the 
records retention period identified in the Project Agreement. The cost of this audit can be partially 
prorated to the federal program. 

11. Agency shall make additional deposits, as needed, upon request from State. Requests for additional 
deposits shall be accompanied by an itemized statement of expenditures and an estimated cost to 
complete the Project. 

12. Agency shall present invoices for one hundred (100) percent of actual costs incurred by Agency on 
behalf of the Project directly to State’s Liaison for review, approval and reimbursement to Agency. 
Costs will be reimbursed consistent with federal funding provisions and the Project Agreement. Such 
invoices shall identify the Project by the name of the Project Agreement, reference the Project 
Agreement number, and shall itemize and explain all expenses for which reimbursement is claimed. 
Invoices shall be presented for periods of not less than one-month duration, based on actual 
expenses to date. All invoices received from Agency must be approved by State’s Liaison prior to 
payment. Agency’s actual costs eligible for federal-aid or State participation shall be those allowable 
under the provisions of the Federal-Aid Policy Guide (FAPG), Title 23 CFR parts 1.11, 140 and 710. 
Final invoices shall be submitted to State for processing within forty-five (45) days from the end of 
each funding phase as follows: a) preliminary engineering, which ends at the award date of 
construction   b) last payment for right of way acquisition and c) contract completion for construction. 
Partial billing (progress payment) shall be submitted to State within forty-five (45) days from date 
that costs are incurred.  Invoices submitted after 45 days may not be eligible for reimbursement by 
FHWA. Agency acknowledges and agrees that State, the Oregon Secretary of State’s Office, the 
federal government, and their duly authorized representatives shall have access to the books, 
documents, papers, and records of Agency which are directly pertinent to the Project Agreement for 
the purpose of making audit, examination, excerpts, and transcripts for a period ending on the later 
of six (6) years following the date of final voucher to FHWA or after resolution of any disputes under 
the Project Agreement.   Copies of such records and accounts shall be made available upon 
request.  For real property and equipment, the retention period starts from the date of disposition (2 
CFR 200.333(c)). 

13. Agency shall, upon State’s written request for reimbursement in accordance with Title 23, CFR part 
630.112(c) 1 and 2, as directed by FHWA, reimburse State for federal-aid funds distributed to 
Agency if any of the following events occur:  

a) Right of way acquisition is not undertaken or actual construction is not started by the 
close of the twentieth federal fiscal year following the federal fiscal year in which the 
federal-aid funds were authorized for right of way acquisition. Agency may submit a 
written request to State’s Liaison for a time extension beyond the twenty (20) year 
limit with no repayment of federal funds and State will forward the request to FHWA.  
FHWA may approve this request if it is considered reasonable. 

b) Right of way acquisition or actual construction of the facility for which preliminary 
engineering is undertaken is not started by the close of the tenth federal fiscal year 
following the federal fiscal year in which the federal-aid funds were authorized. 
Agency may submit a written request to State’s Liaison  for a time extension beyond 
the ten (10) year limit with no repayment of federal funds and State will forward the 
request to FHWA.  FHWA may approve this request if it is considered reasonable. 

14. State shall, on behalf of Agency, maintain all Project documentation in keeping with State and 
FHWA standards and specifications. This shall include, but is not limited to, daily work records, 

22



Agency/State 
Agreement No. 32933 
 

15 
STDPRO-2017 
Rev. 01-20-2017 

quantity documentation, material invoices and quality documentation, certificates of origin, process 
control records, test results, and inspection records to ensure that the Project is completed in 
conformance with approved plans and specifications.  

15. State shall submit all claims for federal-aid participation to FHWA in the normal manner and compile 
accurate cost accounting records.  State shall pay all reimbursable costs of the Project. Agency may 
request a statement of costs-to-date at any time by submitting a written request. When the final total 
cost of the Project has been computed, State shall furnish Agency with an itemized statement.. 
Agency shall pay an amount which, when added to said advance deposit and federal reimbursement 
payment, will equal one hundred (100) percent of the final total cost of the Project. Any portion of 
deposits made in excess of the final total cost of the Project, minus federal reimbursement, shall be 
released to Agency. The actual cost of services provided by State will be charged to the Project 
expenditure account(s) and will be included in the final total cost of the Project. 

DESIGN STANDARDS 

16. Agency and State agree that minimum design standards on all local agency jurisdictional roadway 
or street projects on the National Highway System (NHS) and projects on the non-NHS shall be the 
American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials (AASHTO) standards and be 
in accordance with State’s Oregon Bicycle & Pedestrian Design Guide (current version). State or its 
consultant shall use either AASHTO’s A Policy on Geometric Design of Highways and Streets 
(current version) or State’s Resurfacing, Restoration and Rehabilitation (3R) design standards for 
3R projects.  State or its consultant may use AASHTO for vertical clearance requirements on 
Agency’s jurisdictional roadways or streets.  

17. Agency agrees that if the Project is on the Oregon State Highway System or a State-owned facility, 
that design standards shall be in compliance with standards specified in the current ODOT Highway 
Design Manual and related references. Construction plans for such projects shall be in conformance 
with standard practices of State and all specifications shall be in substantial compliance with the 
most current Oregon Standard Specifications for Highway Construction and current Contract Plans 
Development Guide. 

18. State and Agency agree that for all projects on the Oregon State Highway System or a State-owned 
facility, any design element that does not meet ODOT Highway Design Manual design standards 
must be justified and documented by means of a design exception.  State and Agency further agrees 
that for all projects on the NHS, regardless of funding source; any design element that does not 
meet AASHTO standards must be justified and documented by means of a design exception.  State 
shall review any design exceptions on the Oregon State Highway System and retains authority for 
their approval.  FHWA shall review any design exceptions for projects subject to Focused Federal 
Oversight and retains authority for their approval.   

19. Agency agrees all traffic control devices and traffic management plans shall meet the requirements 
of the current edition of the Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices and Oregon Supplement as 
adopted in Oregon Administrative Rule (OAR) 734-020-0005. State or its  consultant shall, on behalf 
of Agency, obtain the approval of the State Traffic Engineer prior to the design and construction of 
any traffic signal, or illumination to be installed on a state highway pursuant to OAR 734-020-0430.  

20. The standard unit of measurement for all aspects of the Project shall be English Units. All Project 
documents and products shall be in English. This includes, but is not limited to, right of way, 
environmental documents, plans and specifications, and utilities. 

23



Agency/State 
Agreement No. 32933 
 

16 
STDPRO-2017 
Rev. 01-20-2017 

PRELIMINARY & CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING 

21. Preliminary engineering and construction engineering may be performed by either a) State, or b) a 
State-approved consultant.   Engineering work will be monitored by State to ensure conformance 
with FHWA rules and regulations.  Project plans, specifications and cost estimates shall be 
performed by either a) State, or b) a State-approved consultant. State shall review and approve 
Project plans, specifications and cost estimates. State shall, at project expense, review, process 
and approve, or submit for approval to the federal regulators, all environmental statements.  State 
shall offer Agency the opportunity to review the documents prior to advertising for bids.  

22.  Architectural, engineering, photogrammetry, transportation planning, land surveying and related 
services (A&E Services) as needed for federal-aid transportation projects must follow the State’s 
processes  to ensure federal reimbursement. State will award and execute the contracts. State’s 
personal services contracting process and resulting contract document will follow Title 23 CFR part 
172,  2 CFR part 1201, ORS 279A.055, 279C.110, 279C.125, OAR 137-048-0130, OAR 137-048-
0220(4), OAR 137-048-0260  and State Personal Services Contracting Procedures, as applicable 
and as approved by the FHWA. Such personal services contract(s) shall contain a description of 
the work to be performed, a project schedule, and the method of payment. No reimbursement shall 
be made using federal-aid funds for any costs incurred by Agency or the state approved consultant 
prior to receiving authorization from State to proceed. 

23. The State or its consultant responsible for performing preliminary engineering for the Project shall, 
as part of its preliminary engineering costs, obtain all Project related permits necessary for the 
construction of said Project. Said permits shall include, but are not limited to, access, utility, 
environmental, construction, and approach permits. All pre-construction permits will be obtained 
prior to advertisement for construction.  

24. State shall prepare construction contract and bidding documents, advertise for bid proposals, and 
award all construction contracts. 

25. Upon State’s award of a construction contract, State shall perform quality assurance and 
independent assurance testing in accordance with the FHWA-approved Quality Assurance Program 
found in State’s Manual of Field Test Procedures, process and pay all contractor progress 
estimates, check final quantities and costs, and oversee and provide intermittent inspection services 
during the construction phase of the Project.  

26. State shall, as a Project expense, assign a liaison to provide Project monitoring as needed 
throughout all phases of Project activities (preliminary engineering, right-of-way acquisition, and 
construction). State’s liaison shall process reimbursement for federal participation costs. 

REQUIRED STATEMENT FOR United States Department of Transportation (USDOT) 
FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AGREEMENT 

27. By signing the Federal-Aid Agreement to which these Federal Standard Provisions are attached, 
Agency agrees to adopt State’s DBE Program Plan, available at 
https://www.oregon.gov/ODOT/CS/CIVILRIGHTS/Pages/dbe_prog_plan.aspx. Agency shall not 
discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex in the award and performance of any 
USDOT-assisted contract or in the administration of its DBE program or the requirements of 49 CFR 
part 26. Agency agrees to take all necessary and reasonable steps under 49 CFR part 26 to ensure 
nondiscrimination in the award and administration of USDOT-assisted contracts. State’s DBE 
program, as required by 49 CFR part 26 and as approved by USDOT, is incorporated by reference 

24



Agency/State 
Agreement No. 32933 
 

17 
STDPRO-2017 
Rev. 01-20-2017 

in this  Project Agreement. Implementation of this program is a legal obligation and failure to carry 
out its terms shall be treated as a violation of this Project Agreement. Upon notification to the 
recipient of its failure to carry out its approved program, the USDOT may impose sanctions as 
provided for under part 26 and may, in appropriate cases, refer the matter for enforcement under 
18 United States Code (USC) 1001 and/or the Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986 (31 USC 
3801 et seq.). 

Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBE) Obligations   

28. State and Agency agree to incorporate by reference the requirements of 49 CFR part 26 and State’s 
DBE Program Plan, as required by 49 CFR part 26 and as approved by USDOT, into all contracts 
entered into under this Project Agreement.  The following required DBE assurance shall be included 
in all contracts: 

“The contractor or subcontractor shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national 
origin, or sex in the performance of this contract. The contractor shall carry out applicable 
requirements of Title 49 CFR part 26 in the award and administration of federal-aid contracts.  
Failure by the contractor to carry out these requirements is a material breach of this contract, 
which may result in the termination of this contract or such other remedy as Agency deems 
appropriate. Each subcontract the contractor signs with a subcontractor must include the 
assurance in this paragraph (see 49 CFR 26.13(b)).” 

29. State and Agency agree to comply with all applicable civil rights laws, rules and regulations, 
including Title V and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, the Americans with Disabilities 
Act of 1990 (ADA),  and Titles VI and VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964.  

30. The Parties hereto agree and understand that they will comply with all applicable federal, state, and 
local laws, regulations, executive orders and ordinances applicable to the work including, but not 
limited to, the provisions of ORS 279C.505, 279C.515, 279C.520, 279C.530 and 279B.270, 
incorporated herein by reference and made a part hereof; Title 23 CFR parts 1.11, 140, 635, 710, 
and 771; Title 49 CFR parts 24 and 26; , 2 CFR 1201; Title 23, USC, Federal-Aid Highway Act; Title 
41, Chapter 1, USC 51-58, Anti-Kickback Act; Title 42 USC; Uniform Relocation Assistance and 
Real Property Acquisition Policy Act of 1970, as amended, the  provisions of the FAPG and FHWA 
Contract Administration Core Curriculum Participants Manual & Reference Guide.  State and 
Agency agree that FHWA-1273 Required Contract Provisions shall be included in all contracts and 
subcontracts verbatim and not by reference.  

RIGHT OF WAY 

31. Right of Way activities shall be conducted in accordance with the Uniform Relocation Assistance 
and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, as amended, ORS Chapter 35, FAPG, CFR, 
and the ODOT Right of Way Manual, Title 23 CFR part 710 and Title 49 CFR part 24. State, at 
Project expense, shall review all right of way activities engaged in by Agency to ensure compliance 
with all laws and regulations. 

32. State is responsible for proper acquisition of the necessary right of way and easements for 
construction and maintenance of projects.  State or its consultant may perform acquisition of the 
necessary right of way and easements for construction and maintenance of the Project in 
accordance with the ODOT Right of Way Manual, and with the prior approval from State’s Region 
Right of Way office.   

25



Agency/State 
Agreement No. 32933 
 

18 
STDPRO-2017 
Rev. 01-20-2017 

33. Regardless of who acquires or performs any of the right of way activities, a right of way services 
agreement shall be initiated by State's Region Right of Way office setting forth the responsibilities 
and activities to be accomplished by each Party. If the Project has the potential of needing right of 
way, to ensure compliance in the event that right of way is unexpectedly needed, a right of way 
services agreement will be required.  State, at Project expense, shall be responsible for requesting 
the obligation of project funding from FHWA. State, at Project expense, shall be responsible for 
coordinating certification of the right of way, and providing oversight and monitoring. Funding 
authorization requests for federal right of way funds must be sent through State’s Liaison, who will 
forward the request to State’s Region Right of Way office on all projects. All projects must have right 
of way certification coordinated through State's Region Right of Way office to declare compliance 
and project readiness for construction (even for projects where no federal funds were used for right 
of way, but federal funds were used elsewhere on a project). Agency agrees that if any real property 
purchased with federal-aid participation is no longer needed for the originally authorized purpose, 
the disposition of such property shall be subject to applicable rules and regulations, which are in 
effect at the time of disposition. Reimbursement to State and FHWA of the required proportionate 
shares of the fair market value may be required.   

34. State or its consultant shall ensure that all project right of way monumentation will be conducted in 
conformance with ORS 209.155.   

35. State and Agency grant each other authority to enter onto the other’s right of way for the 
performance of non-construction activities such as surveying and inspection of the Project.   

RAILROADS 

36. State shall follow State established policy and procedures when impacts occur on railroad property.  
The policy and procedures are available through the State’s Liaison, who will contact State’s 
Railroad Liaison on behalf of Agency.  Only those costs allowable under Title 23 CFR part 140 
subpart I, and Title 23 part 646 subpart B shall be included in the total Project costs; all other costs 
associated with railroad work will be at the sole expense of Agency, or others.   

UTILITIES 

37. State, its consultant, and Agency shall follow State established statutes, policies and procedures 
when impacts occur to privately or publicly-owned utilities. Policy, procedures and forms are 
available through the State Utility Liaison or State's Liaison.  State, the consultant or Agency shall 
provide copies of all signed utility notifications, agreements and Utility Certification to the State Utility 
& Railroad Liaison. Only those utility relocations, which are eligible for reimbursement under the 
FAPG, Title 23 CFR part 645 subparts A and B, shall be included in the total Project costs; all other 
utility relocations shall be at the sole expense of Agency, or others.  Agency may send a written 
request to State, at Project expense, to arrange for utility relocations/adjustments lying within 
Agency jurisdiction.  This request must be submitted no later than twenty-one (21) weeks prior to 
bid let date.   Agency shall not perform any utility work on state highway right of way without first 
receiving written authorization from State. 

GRADE CHANGE LIABILITY 

38. Agency, if a County, acknowledges the effect and scope of ORS 105.755 and agrees that all acts 
necessary to complete construction of the Project which may alter or change the grade of existing 
county roads are being accomplished at the direct request of the County. 

26



Agency/State 
Agreement No. 32933 
 

19 
STDPRO-2017 
Rev. 01-20-2017 

39. Agency, if a City, hereby accepts responsibility for all claims for damages from grade changes. 
Approval of plans by State shall not subject State to liability under ORS 105.760 for change of grade. 

40. Agency, if a City, by execution of the Project Agreement, gives its consent as required by ORS 
373.030(2) to any and all changes of grade within the City limits, and gives its consent as required 
by ORS 373.050(1) to any and all closure of streets intersecting the highway, if any there be in 
connection with or arising out of the Project covered by the Project Agreement. 

MAINTENANCE RESPONSIBILITIES 

41. Agency shall, at its own expense, maintain operate, and provide power as needed upon Project 
completion at a minimum level that is consistent with normal depreciation and/or service demand 
and throughout the useful life of the Project.  The useful life of the Project is defined in the Special 
Provisions.  State may conduct periodic inspections during the life of the Project to verify that the 
Project is properly maintained and continues to serve the purpose for which federal funds were 
provided.  Maintenance and power responsibilities shall survive any termination of the Project 
Agreement. In the event the Project will include or affect a state highway, this provision does not 
address maintenance of that state highway. 

CONTRIBUTION 

42. If any third party makes any claim or brings any action, suit or proceeding alleging a tort as now or 
hereafter defined in ORS 30.260 ("Third Party Claim") against State or Agency with respect to which 
the other Party may have liability, the notified Party must promptly notify the other Party in writing of 
the Third Party Claim and deliver to the other Party a copy of the claim, process, and all legal 
pleadings with respect to the Third Party Claim. Each Party is entitled to participate in the defense 
of a Third Party Claim, and to defend a Third Party Claim with counsel of its own choosing. Receipt 
by a Party of the notice and copies required in this paragraph and meaningful opportunity for the 
Party to participate in the investigation, defense and settlement of the Third Party Claim with counsel 
of its own choosing are conditions precedent to that Party's liability with respect to the Third Party 
Claim.  

43. With respect to a Third Party Claim for which State is jointly liable with Agency (or would be if joined 
in the Third Party Claim), State shall contribute to the amount of expenses (including attorneys' 
fees), judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred and paid 
or payable by Agency in such proportion as is appropriate to reflect the relative fault of State on the 
one hand and of Agency on the other hand in connection with the events which resulted in such 
expenses, judgments, fines or settlement amounts, as well as any other relevant equitable 
considerations. The relative fault of State on the one hand and of Agency on the other hand shall 
be determined by reference to, among other things, the Parties' relative intent, knowledge, access 
to information and opportunity to correct or prevent the circumstances resulting in such expenses, 
judgments, fines or settlement amounts. State’s contribution amount in any instance is capped to 
the same extent it would have been capped under Oregon law, including the Oregon Tort Claims 
Act, ORS 30.260 to 30.300, if State had sole liability in the proceeding.  

44. With respect to a Third Party Claim for which Agency is jointly liable with State (or would be if joined 
in the Third Party Claim), Agency shall contribute to the amount of expenses (including attorneys' 
fees), judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred and paid 
or payable by State in such proportion as is appropriate to reflect the relative fault of Agency on the 
one hand and of State on the other hand in connection with the events which resulted in such 
expenses, judgments, fines or settlement amounts, as well as any other relevant equitable 

27



Agency/State 
Agreement No. 32933 
 

20 
STDPRO-2017 
Rev. 01-20-2017 

considerations. The relative fault of Agency on the one hand and of State on the other hand shall 
be determined by reference to, among other things, the Parties' relative intent, knowledge, access 
to information and opportunity to correct or prevent the circumstances resulting in such expenses, 
judgments, fines or settlement amounts. Agency's contribution amount in any instance is capped to 
the same extent it would have been capped under Oregon law, including the Oregon Tort Claims 
Act, ORS 30.260 to 30.300, if it had sole liability in the proceeding. 

ALTERNATIVE DISPUTE RESOLUTION 

45. The Parties shall attempt in good faith to resolve any dispute arising out of this Project Agreement. 
In addition, the Parties may agree to utilize a jointly selected mediator or arbitrator (for non-binding 
arbitration) to resolve the dispute short of litigation.  

WORKERS’ COMPENSATION COVERAGE 

46. All employers, including Agency, that employ subject workers who work under this  Project 
Agreement in the State of Oregon shall comply with ORS 656.017 and provide the required Workers' 
Compensation coverage unless such employers are exempt under ORS 656.126. Employers 
Liability Insurance with coverage limits of not less than five hundred thousand ($500,000) must be 
included.  State and Agency shall ensure that each of its contractors complies with these 
requirements.   

LOBBYING RESTRICTIONS – pursuant to Form FHWA-1273, Required Contract Provisions 

47. Agency certifies by signing the  Project Agreement that: 

a) No federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the 
undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or 
employee of any federal agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of 
Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding 
of any federal contract, the making of any federal grant, the making of any federal 
loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, 
continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any federal contract, grant, 
loan, or cooperative agreement. 

b) If any funds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to 
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any 
federal agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an 
employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this federal contract, grant, 
loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit 
Standard Form-LLL, “Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying,” in accordance with its 
instructions. 

c) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in 
the award documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subgrants, and contracts 
and subcontracts under grants, subgrants, loans, and cooperative agreements) 
which exceed one hundred thousand dollars ($100,000), and that all such 
subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly. 

d) This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed 
when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a 

28



Agency/State 
Agreement No. 32933 
 

21 
STDPRO-2017 
Rev. 01-20-2017 

prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by Title 31, USC 
Section 1352. 

e) Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty 
of not less than ten thousand dollars ($10,000) and not more than one hundred 
thousand dollars ($100,000) for each such failure. 

29



City of Molalla 
City Council Meeting 

 
Agenda Category: 

New Business 
 

Subject: Discussion of Future Topics 

Recommendation:  

Date of Meeting to 
be Presented: 

August 8, 2018 

Fiscal Impact: None 

Submitted By:  

Approved By:  

 

Background: 

Mayor Thompson requested this be an on going item for future topics.  

 

30



City of Molalla 
City Council Meeting 

 
Agenda Category: 
Executive Session 

 

Subject: (h) To consult with counsel concerning the legal rights and duties of a 
public body with regard to current litigation or litigation likely to be filed. 

 

Recommendation: None 

Date of Meeting to 
be Presented: 

August 8, 2018 

Fiscal Impact: None 

Submitted By: Dan Huff 

Approved By: Dan Huff 

 

Background: 

Held pursuant to Oregon Public Record Law, ORS 192.660(2): 
(h) To consult with counsel concerning the legal rights and duties of a public body with regard 

to current litigation or litigation likely to be filed. 
 

 

 

31


	Top
	1. City council Minutes July 25, 2018
	City Council Meeting Minutes 072518_.docx

	2. Intergovernmental Agreement with Oregon Department of Transportation (ARTS) Program
	Consent Agenda - All Roads Transportation Safety (ARTS) Project.pdf
	32933 ARTS East Systemic IGA - Hwy 213-Toliver &amp;amp; Hwy 211-Ona.pdf

	3. Discussion of Future Topics
	ITEM-Staff-bbe0f4c535e64a9b93235854684f03a0 (6).docx

	4. Executive Session
	ITEM-Staff-bbe0f4c535e64a9b93235854684f03a0 (8) (1).docx

	Bottom

